
 

RFP 18-019 
Addendum 1 

Has previous brand research been completed?  Is there an incumbent for this work? Are they bidding? 
Decline to share previous brand research.  There is not an incumbent for this work. 
 
In “submittal instructions”, what does a redacted electronic mean? What should be redacted?  All 
submissions are subject to Freedom of Information Act requests. For this reason, we require electronic 
version of your proposal with any proprietary information redacted.  
 
Who is the target student for the University? Where do your students come from? Are there any priority 
out of state markets from a recruitment perspective?  90%+ of our students come from Arkansas.  There 
is a desire to address target out-of-state markets.  The rest will be addressed with selected vendor.  
 
How do you define the following audiences: Local, Regional Will be addressed with selected vendor.  
 
Who do you consider are your peers and competitors for student enrolment? Will be addressed with 
selected vendor.  
 
In Phase 1 Research – Quantitative – who are the “key constituents” that you would like to survey? Can 
you provide sample list for any of these constituents? Will be addressed with selected vendor.  
 
In Phase 1 Research – Qualitative – are you interested in doing focus groups of prospective students 
outside the state?  If so, what markets would you be interested in? Will be addressed with selected 
vendor. 
 
For on-site research – does the University have any focus group facilities, or space that would be 
appropriate to hold focus groups and interviews?  Would that space be provided free to the selected 
vendor? Yes, to the selected vendor.  
 
Will you provide lists of students, faculty, staff, and alumni to recruit from for the qualitative research? 
Yes, to the selected vendor.  
  
What is considered a ‘national’ target audience for the qualitative research portion? Will be addressed 
with selected vendor. 
 
Further clarify the timeline. Are you asking for a timeline that assumes an in-market date of July 1? Or 
does this mean that the work will be awarded on July 1 and that a timeline should be provided to outline 
how each phase of the project will be executed starting on that date? Work will begin on July 1. Specific 



milestones and deliverables dates will be agreed upon between ATU and the selected vendor. We hope 
to begin work on July 1.  
  
Has Arkansas Tech conducted any brand or enrollment research in the past? If any, would that be 
available for review? What kind of research has been conducted among current students? Among 
alumni? If yes, will the data be made available? Any available data will be shared with the selected 
vendor.  
 

The RFP expressly states the need to conduct quantitative research to explore awareness and qualitative 

research to determine perceptions. While this area of inquiry will certainly be explored by each type of 

research, we are assuming that we do not have to limit ourselves to these areas. Is that correct? Correct.  

 

We are assuming that this engagement will require some research with prospective students. Is 

Arkansas Tech willing to share lists of inquiring students along with their contact information? 

Approximately how many inquiries does the university receive from prospective students each 

admissions cycle? How does that break out by campus? The University receives around 15,000+ 

inquiries each admissions cycle for the Russellville campus, and at least 1,000 for Ozark campus.  We will 

work with the selected vendor to maximize efficiency.  

 

 

We did not find any demographic/student profile data for the Ozark Campus on the Arkansas Tech 

website or on IPEDS. Do these students tend to enroll directly from high school or do they tend to be 

adults, or are they a mix? How many students are enrolled in degree programs (they are all Associate 

programs, correct?) and how many in non-degree programs? All of these students (in both types of 

programs) are email-accessible, correct? How many attend class during the day vs in the evening vs 

during the weekend?  Will be discussed in-depth with the selected vendor. 

 

The RFP indicates that the university “has identified university image as a focus in its strategic plan.” 

Does Arkansas Tech consider the RFP’s scope aimed solely at brand awareness, or is there a primary 

desire to influence enrollment, fundraising, or other goals? All of the above. 

 

When did Arkansas Tech last undertake a messaging and/or brand refresh? Prior to current 

administration. 

 

The RFP indicates that the work is aimed at supporting the undergraduate, graduate, associate, technical 

programs – (or all programs)? Is it equal focus for all programs, or can you prioritize? All of the above.  

 

The RFP doesn’t include a visual representation of the brand (how it would live in marketing materials), 

other creative work (advertising, website, collateral, etc.), or executions. Does Arkansas Tech anticipate 

this as a fourth phase of work as the other three phases are completed? If so, is the priority on brand or 

admissions materials, and are there known deadlines for such work? Depends on the outcome of the 



study.  An updated visual identify guide, regardless of changes to the brand, should be included in this 

RPF and not as a separate phase. 

 

The RFP mentions both the academic and athletic logos (“as needed, tighten or revise…”). Are there 

known issues or existing research about these marks? Since we don’t yet know the extent of the 

recommendations, would you like us to price a refresh for the institutional identity and/or the athletics 

logos? Or are you interested in pricing for redoing everything completely? Any athletic logo 

change/refresh/visual identity should be priced in your proposal, as that is a part of this project. 

 

For the brand development, is Arkansas Tech interested in an online brand and graphic identity guide 

solution? Or a traditional, offline brand and graphic identity guide? Depends on study outcome. 

 

Is Arkansas Tech currently working with a media buying agency? Is Arkansas Tech interested in this 

service as well? Not in the scope of this RFP. 

 
Who will be the key contacts that we would be dealing with at Arkansas Tech University should we be 
awarded the contract? ATU’s Branding Committee. 
 
What internal creative resources does Arkansas Tech University have? Will we be doing development 
work and handing it off to an internal branding and marketing team to execute or will be asked to 
control and manage the final creative product? (This speaks to the time investment we will need to 
make and directly impacts cost). The goal of this RFP is to end with a visual identity guide that our 
internal marketing and communication office will execute.  Any management of future creative would 
like outside the scope of this RFP. 

 


